COA No: 299279

# COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION III OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

Mil. 19 2012

# TARI JANE ANDERSON

Appellant

V

# JANE M. HESSION

# Respondent

# **BRIEF OF APPELLANT**

Tari Jane Anderson Pro Se Litigant 504 W. Cleveland Avenue Spokane, Washington 99205-3211 (509) 328-2402

COA No: 299279

# COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION III OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

1107 19 2012

# TARI JANE ANDERSON

Appellant

v

# JANE M. HESSION

# Respondent

# **BRIEF OF APPELLANT**

Tari Jane Anderson Pro Se Litigant 504 W. Cleveland Avenue Spokane, Washington 99205-3211 (509) 328-2402

# THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION III

#### I. ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR

#### II. ISSUES PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR

- 1. Did the trial court err by failing to consider Judge Robinson's rationale in Small Claims to allow Dennis P. Hession, an attorney, but consider as a party of interest, who defended his wife, Jane M. Hession throughout the entire scope of proceedings which the lower court erroneously applied the wrong rules of law by the abuse of discretion, instead of exercising a change of venue for the defendant?
- 2. Did the trial court err and disregard Appellant's evidences when genuine issues of material facts existed that were simply overlooked, in addition to the challenges of strict scrutiny: The U. S. Constitution, Washington State Constitution and the Statute Laws?
- 3. Did the trial court err by applying certain excerpts to base his findings that were presented by Counsel, Dennis P. Hession, and some of these material facts were two years old (2009) after the alleged incident (2007) as material misstatement of facts, that violates the substantive rights of the Appellant, Tari Jane Anderson?

#### III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a second appeal on a personal injury sustained from the Respondent, Jane M. Hession on a alleged assault and battery occurred on October 15, 2007; either as an Intentional Tort of Simple Battery, which the Appellant claims (WPIC 35.50) or deem necessary as a Negligence Act in accordance of the Court's determination on discretionary review<sup>1</sup>.

The first appeal was requested on April 12, 2010 for a Trial de Novo on December 6, 2010 which the Appellant assumed it was an Oral Hearing *for* a Trial de Novo *not* the *actual trial de novo*, per se<sup>2</sup>. In the midst of awaiting the "Oral Hearing"<sup>3</sup>, the Appellant did not contact or subpoena the rest of the witnesses to appear and state their oral testimony in person as to what they witnessed on October 15, 2007 and clarify what they saw. There was no legal written clarification from the Superior Court via Steven County as to the changes in the "Oral Hearing" the Appellant would attend except the notice that was mailed regarding the "Oral Hearing" after the briefs were in. The surprise was on the Appellant during the trial and the unfairness was caused by not receiving further notices that notified the trial de novo<sup>4</sup> will be in session...it was devastating!

In addition, the Reply Brief of the Appellant was given to the Superior Court in Spokane County on November 1, 2010, but the Reply Brief <sup>5</sup> did not reach Judge Allen C. Nielson in

<sup>1 (</sup>CP 404)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> (RP: 2 to 3:24) Verbatim Report of Proceedings (December 6, 2010) The Court: "Well, ma'am, I need to stop you there. This is a trial de novo."

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> (CP 198) The notice was issued by Evelyn Bell, Administrative Clerk from Steven County <u>for</u> an Oral Hearing <u>not</u> a Trial de Novo.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> (RP: 12 to 15:32) Verbatim Report of Proceedings (December 6, 2010) The actual realization in which the Appellant was not aware of the trial de novo and neither did the trial judge, Judge Allen C. Nielson, realized the Hearing was supposed to be an Oral Hearing for a trial de novo.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> (CP 201) Reply Brief was filed on November 1, 2010 in the Superior Court in Spokane County...Ample time to be delivered to Steven County Court House for Judge Allen C. Nielson prior to the Hearing on December 6, 2010.

Stevens County until the day of the 'Oral Hearing' that took place on December 6, 2010 in Spokane. The Appellant felt the delay was inexcusable. The result lacks confidence in the legal system and Tari Jane Anderson feels there was not adequate time for Judge Allen C. Nielson to grasp the totality of the Reply Brief not only with quality comprehension but good-faith consideration which in reality constitutes another form of judicial injustice with prejudice and a violation of the **Due Process Clause**. If this procedure is normal standard in 'Civil Law', then the legal impact does not foster hope for anyone involved in a lawsuit, it leaves an impression that the hard work put into the preparation of the Reply Brief or any Brief is meaningless and not worthy to uphold.

Nevertheless, the 'elements of claims' were mentioned in the Reply Brief, but not the wording as "the duty" or the "breach of duty", just the form of causation and damages with the burden of proof that were listed from the Police Report of witnesses that the Appellant composed as truthfully as possible to the alleged assault and battery by Jane M. Hession<sup>6</sup>. The burden of proof were put into perspective and written into the Reply Brief but somehow the admission in the Reply Brief by Tari Jane Anderson became elusive in the eyes of Counsel Dennis P. Hession and he argued exclusively with misstatement of facts on December 6, 2010 and won under those conditions until the written composition by the Appellant was completed for the "Objections to the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law" that came into play on April 8, 2011 as merits on the records.

The Appellant refuses to acknowledge the 'Findings' prepared by Counsel Dennis P.

Hession of his incorrect arguments on the grounds of which *numerous purported facts that* 

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> (CP 209, 210, and 211)

<sup>7 (</sup>CP 228)

were unsupported by any evidences of record and proposed conclusions of law that are unsupported by any decisional or statutory law<sup>8</sup>. The understanding in which Tari Jane Anderson received knowledgeable information from extensive research at Gonzaga University Law Library that each proposed findings of fact shall cite with particularity the evidence supporting such fact and each proposed conclusion of law shall cite applicable legal authority<sup>9</sup>. These criteria were not properly enclosed on written materials or noted in the documents by the defense.

Then there is the lack of concern by Judge Allen C. Nielson regarding the violations in Small Claims Court that heeded Tari Jane Anderson to request a "Motion for Reconsideration" which was entirely *excused* on the Presentment Hearing<sup>10</sup>, a telephonic consideration on April 22, 2011. Judge Allen C. Nielson felt under the circumstances of the oral arguments in the 'trial de novo' to allow the Court of Appeals III to have a fresher look at the case not on a matter of right, but a Discretionary Review<sup>11</sup>.

Therefore, on May 18, 2011, the Appellant filed a 'Notice of Appeal' to the Court of Appeals III on the grounds of the wrong rulings that altered the outcome of the case by Judge Doug Robinson, a pro tem from Whitman County which were placed on the back burner on December 6, 2010<sup>12</sup>. It appears that Judge Allen C. Nielson from Stevens County did overlook the wrong applications of the Washington State Statute Laws in Small Claims, when the trial court should have corrected Judge Robinson's rationale on the misinterpretation of the rules on

.

<sup>8 (</sup>CP 228 to 229)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> (CP 230)

<sup>10</sup> RP:19 to 25:5 Verbatim Report of Proceedings (April 22, 2011)

<sup>11</sup> RP:1 to 3:45 Verbatim Report of Proceedings (December 6, 2010)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> (CP 21) Wrong Application of the Laws...violated RCW 12.40.080 and its correlating RCW 12.40.025, CR 4.2 (a) (b) and CR 70.1 (b).

December 6, 2011<sup>13</sup>. By doing so, the legal action would prevent Counsel Dennis P. Hession from taking advantage of the rules in the lower court to appear and perform *twice* in Small Claims Court. The first, was in regards to the Hearing that occurred in the clarification of the DVD on November 18, 2011<sup>14</sup> and the second, was the previous violations of Small Claims on March 12, 2010, that initiated the journey towards the Appeals which began in Superior Court as an Oral Hearing but instead was a trial de novo and presently address in the Court of Appeals III.

Consequently, Judge Allen C. Nielson based his 'Final Ruling' not only on the wrong citations in the Respondent Brief (2010) of the defendant, Jane M. Hession, but disregarded the many errors that accompanied the manuscript of the Respondent's Brief. First, it was not stamped as a copy of a filed document in Superior Court and was delivered late regarding a 'Timely Manner' and without a 'Table of Contents' which the Superior Judge ignored. All of the Defense Citations in the "Table of Authorities" were wrong in their perspective which counsel, Dennis P. Hession applied as legal defense. The "Tables of Authorities" were legally adopted as erroneous not only by allowing an attorney, the permission to defend in Small Claims Court as the basis for marital community but the totality of its meaning do not apply in this case. I mentioned the mistaken error in my Reply Brief as well as at the Presentment Hearing on December 6, 2010 in Superior Court, but the trial judge did not care to comment. Consequently, the Superior Judge or his research team failed to examine those citations of the "Table of Authorities" that were prepared by counsel, Dennis P. Hession which could have helped my case

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> RP: 8 to 13:2 Verbatim Report of Proceedings (December 6, 2010)

RP:4 to 5:3 Verbatim Report of Proceedings (November 18, 2011) INDEX...Respondent's Opening Statement by Mr. Dennis Hession...Page 4, violated the protocol of the moving party to address the lower court, first.

without prejudice<sup>15</sup>. The Oral Hearing was also called "Presentment Hearing" by Kim Kilham, the Civil Court Coordinator, from the Spokane County Court House.

The lower court acted without jurisprudence on March 12, 2010 and erroneously applied the wrong rules of law throughout the entire scope of proceeding with the illegal abuse of transgression known as 'abuse of discretion'. These procedures were wrongfully done by allowing an attorney to perform in Small Claims Court that led this case to the Appellate Review for a trial de novo on December 6, 2010<sup>16</sup>. The entire approach was inappropriately ignored by the Superior Court with numerous 'miscarriage of justice' that have occurred or perhaps overlooked in the interest of justice.

Tari Jane Anderson finds that the errors throughout this case may have affected other citizens in Spokane, Washington, too; by the lack of knowledge in the rules of Small Claims by Judge Doug Robinson, from Whitman County. Some citizens may have suffered under these indignities of erroneous rulings in which the lower court's decisions to alter the procedural rules have adversely impacted the 'Civil Law' of this State. It is for these reasons why, the Appellant seeks the Court of Appeals III or will petition the transfer to the Supreme Court to review this case on the basis of 'Discretionary Review' as well as the 'strict scrutiny' on the evidences presented on the merits of the records.

<sup>15 (</sup>CP 408 and CP 409)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> (CP 50) This is a violation of RCW 26.16.190. The lower court judge overlooked this ruling and should have exercise a change of venue for the defendant.

#### IV. ARGUMENT

A. The trial court erred by failing to consider Judge Robinson's Rationale in Small Claims to allow Dennis P. Hession, an attorney, but consider as a party of interest, who defended his wife, Jane M. Hession throughout the entire scope of proceedings which the lower court erroneously applied the wrong rules of law by the abuse of discretion, instead of exercising a change of venue for the defendant.

When something traumatic happens to you by someone else's hand, that person is forced to carry the burden of their issues, and tends to question who am I supposed to be? A victim, empowered by justice and that is actually what transpired on March 12, 2010. Only to find that justice was unattainable by the erroneous applications of the laws which the lower court judge adamantly believed a person of interest, regardless if he is an attorney, can defend and perform in the judicial forum of Small Claims Court<sup>17</sup>, adherent as an abuse of discretion... US v Rahm 993 F. 2d 1405, 1410 (9<sup>th</sup>. Cir. '93). This means: "when a court does not apply the correct law or if it rests its decision on a clearly erroneous find of a material fact".

When the alleged assault and battery occurred on October 15, 2007, Jane Hession and her husband, Dennis Hession, approached from the North apparently coming from City Hall to attend the Mayoral Debate; but when they got within 10 feet of the supporters of 'Trash In Spokane Coalition', Jane Hession quickly speeded up and crossed in front of her husband and came at the plaintiff glaring as Tari Jane Anderson stood next to Patsy Dunn on her left side, watching Jane Hession with apprehension on the encroaching fear of imminent danger. Then within seconds, Jane Hession intentionally pushed Tari Jane Anderson between the sign and above the blue sling that Tari Jane Anderson was wearing and the contact was made onto her

6

<sup>17 (</sup>CP 21)

person, as though Jane Hession's aggressiveness could erase the sign to oblivion by an abusive encounter, engaging as one would consider a bully 18.

I was wearing a blue sling on my right arm due to bursitis and was recovering nicely until the push and shove occurred which my right arm was re-injured and the force of being struck caused new injuries to my body<sup>19</sup>.

The result of this simple battery caused me to suffer multiple injuries of muscle spasms throughout various parts of my body that were very painful and in the course of treatment had to receive 'target shots'. They were cortisone injections administered to the back of my ears, my neck, the scapula on both sides of my back, with 6-inch needles. I received a total of six injections in one visit by Doctor Hansen from Group Health. They were done to alleviate the pain from the whiplash and to continue on with the healing process for soft tissue damages with physical massages, hot packs and ultrasound to the affected areas. Further treatments were necessary, therefore I was sent to Acceleration Physical Therapy from Summit Rehab where they specialize in whiplash injury. The right foot was injured on the bottom right edge as I braced myself from falling backwards when Henry Valder who saw the intentional attack helped to hold me up when Jane M. Hession pushed me because of the sign I was holding that motivated her anger directly at me. The injury to my right foot was diagnosed as a torn ligament by Doctor Paul Skrei from Group Health and I wore a foot brace for several months that Doctor Craig R. Barrow from Orthopaedic Specialty Clinic of Spokane, PLLC diagnosed as a healing device for improved treatment. These Doctors' letters were inadmissible as evidences by both judges, the Honorable Douglas Robinson of Small Claims Court and Honorable Allen C. Nielson from

<sup>18 (</sup>CP 137)

<sup>19 (</sup>CP 405)

Superior Court but the Doctors' Letters were re-entered as relevant evidences due to **RULE ER**103 (a) (2) "Offer of Proof" in the Objections to the Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law as exhibits that were excluded from the original trial on March 12, 2010 and ignored by the Honorable Allen C. Nielson in the Appeal for a Presentment Hearing at the Superior Court for a Trial de Novo on December 6, 2010<sup>20</sup>.

The pain and suffering I endured led me to seek a lawsuit. This is where injustice began when I became a victim not only of the injuries sustained by Jane M. Hession's intentional tort but a victim of judicial injustice and the miscarriage of justice from two presiding judges from different parts of Washington State<sup>21</sup>.

At the trial in the lower court, the error was declared as 'marital community' by Judge Doug Robinson, a pro tem from Whitman County to preside on this case which was not the 'matter of the law' at hand nor does it concern 'proper pleading', when the lawsuit was solely against Jane Hession<sup>23</sup>, regardless if it was a spouse. It was about a tortfeasor, Jane M. Hession who committed the allege atrocity (assault and battery) in a *public environment* on October 15, 2007 and **not** on any community held or in any ownership of personal and business properties.

Consequently, the following reasons that I will present on RCW 26.16.190: "To impose 'Liability' in seeking damages within the marital community are as such: injuries to others sustained from an automobile, yes! A boat, mobile trailer, or personal use of all surrounding property(ies), absolutely"! "But, in a public forum with cemented walkway is Jane Hession's own responsibility when injuring someone outside of the management of

<sup>20 (</sup>CP 406)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> (CP 406)

<sup>22</sup> ICP 211

<sup>23 (</sup>CP 2 and CP 242)

community owned. And is solely accountable not the marital community for her actions".

"Apparently, this law RCW 26.16.190 excludes Dennis Hession's reason for appearance in Small Claims to defend the marital community<sup>24</sup>. The trial judge (lower court judge) who was clearly erroneous when he proclaimed the permission for Dennis Hession to perform in the defense of this action that violates the Rules of Professional Conduct 8.4(c) (d) 'Misconduct', which Dennis Hession has a license to practice in the city of Spokane and in the state of Washington".

"The judgment to be awarded would apply to the <u>separate property</u> that she personally owns and <u>if the amount is insufficient</u>, it would derive from the <u>half interest in the</u> community property for being liable"<sup>26</sup>.

"Why didn't Dennis Hession acquire permission from the trial judge (lower court judge) to move this case to District Court from Small Claims Court? It would then be a remedy for legal counsel"<sup>27</sup>.

The miscarriage of justice was allowing Counsel Dennis P. Hession to defend his wife, Jane M. Hession in Small Claims Court by the misinterpretation of an existing law governing RCW 12.40.080<sup>28</sup> and the conclusive rule of RCW 26.16.190<sup>29</sup> which totally rejects this premise by Judge Doug Robinson, "the community comprised of Jane and Dennis Hession would have to answer for any judgment rendered in this case", was definitely wrong. This situation was due to the jurisdiction the parties were in, and in which the Appellant argued on

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> (CP 271 and CP 272)

<sup>25 (</sup> CP 243)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>26</sup> (CP 272)

<sup>27</sup> ICD 244

<sup>(</sup>CF 244

<sup>29</sup> ICP 260

December 6, 2010; but the trial court judge simply did not address the issue in part, but called it as Judge Doug Robinson's rationale<sup>30</sup>. What good did Judge Allen C. Nielson's statement accomplish, nothing but the anguish of unfairness and unjust protocol to Tari Jane Anderson, and an excuse for Counsel Dennis P. Hession to continue to violate the rules of Small Claims.

B. The trial court erred and disregarded appellant's evidences when genuine issues of material facts existed that were simply overlooked, in addition to the challenges of strict scrutiny: The US Constitution, Washington Constitution and the Statute Laws.

Before the Appellant can begin to describe the mistakes of the lower court, the one thing that sets things into an overall perspective is that "No State shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the privileges or immunities of citizens of the United States; nor shall any State deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws".

Under this law of the **Fourteenth Amendment**, Judge Doug Robinson violated the **RCW 12.40.080** which states "No Attorney Allowed" in reference to the Small Claims jurisdiction<sup>31</sup>. Tari Jane Anderson did try to convince the lower court with this conviction: "In addition to this request the defendant's husband, Dennis Hession is a lawyer and in fairness to me, he should be excused until his turn is up"<sup>32</sup>. Therefore the rights of the Appellant for equal protection of the laws was abridged by an erroneous application of the law by allowing an

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>30</sup> RP: 8 to 13:2...Judge Allen C. Nielson ignored the rules of Small Claims which he could have corrected but instead set the wrong application of the rules aside, violating the 14<sup>th</sup> Amendment: Equal Protection Of The Laws.

<sup>31</sup> (CP 243)

<sup>32 (</sup>CP 244) This quote is on Exhibit G: R:11 through 13:10 but to no avail,

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