JUL 09 2012

COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION III STATE OF WASHINGTON By

No: 299279

COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION III

TARI JANE ANDERSON

Appellant

V.

JANE M. HESSION

Respondent

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF

Dennis P. Hession WSBA No. 9655 Attorney for Respondent 818 W. Riverside Ave, Suite 631 Spokane, WA 99201 (509) 838-4458



JUL 09 2012

COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION III STATE OF WASHINGTON By

No: 299279

COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION III

TARI JANE ANDERSON

Appellant

V.

JANE M. HESSION

Respondent

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF

Dennis P. Hession WSBA No. 9655 Attorney for Respondent 818 W. Riverside Ave, Suite 631 Spokane, WA 99201 (509) 838-4458

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

ARGUMENT

Summary of Argument

Over a period of two years, the Appellant attempted to convince the Spokane County Sheriff's Office and the Spokane County Prosecutor to file 4th degree assault charges against the Respondent Jane M. Hession. RP 52-53. In the process the case was reviewed at virtually every level of the Sheriff's Office RP 52-53 and by Brian O' Brien, Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney who, in concluding there was no intentional act, stated "... I have never seen a misdemeanor assault allegation so thoroughly investigated." RP 52-53; District Court (Small Claims) Administrative Record- Detective Michael Rickett's Report. Unsatisfied, the Appellant brought this civil action and the matter was tried before the Honorable Douglas Robinson. RP 71. The nature of the cause of action is absent from the Notice of Small Claim, RP 6 but the Court treated the Notice as if she plead in the alternative under theories of intentional conduct (battery) and negligence. RP 6. The Trial Court found that the Appellant did not sustain her burden to prove that the Respondent

¹ This reference is to the Police (Sheriff) Report prepared by Detective Michael Ricketts of this incident. It was accepted by Judge Douglas Robinson and made part of the District Court (Small Claims) Administrative Record but was not assigned an Exhibit number. It consists of one hundred and one pages but the pages are not consecutively numbered. The first page is a Police Report Request Form. Hereafter, this part of the Administrative Record will be referred to as Detective Ricketts Report. (RAP 10.4 (f))

acted with intent, and failed to show that the Respondent's conduct was negligent. RP 114. On appeal to the Honorable Allen C. Nielson (Superior Court Judge) the Appellant complained that the District Court improperly refused to consider certain evidence she proffered. Sup Ct RP 20-21. The transcript reveals, however, that the District Court accepted the medical records submitted and even acknowledged that the Appellant was injured. RP 31 and RP 107-108. What the District Court did not accept was the acts of the Respondent were the legal cause of the Appellant's alleged injuries. RP 109, RP 113-114 and RP 118.

In the exercise of its clear discretion, the District Court determined that the participation at trial by the Respondent's husband, a lawyer, was appropriate given the prospect of community liability prompted by the Appellant's claim. RP 10. Judge Nielson heard the matter de novo on the District Court record. Sup. Ct. RP 20-21. He concluded also that the Appellant did not sustain her burden to show an intentional tort or negligence and entered Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and an Order of Dismissal. CP 381-388.

Argument

A. <u>Appellant Failed to Meet Her Burden to Prove Respondent's Intentional Conduct and the Appellant Failed to Satisfy Her Burden to Prove Respondent's Conduct was Negligent.</u>

At trial, the Appellant offered the testimony of only three witnesses to the incident including herself. Two live witnesses, Tari Anderson and Claudia Johnson, and one witness by Affidavit, Henry Valder. RP 11-14, RP 19-20, RP 94-95 and RP 112.

In her direct testimony the Appellant stated that the Respondent "pushed" her and that she was saved from falling by a person behind her. RP p. 12 line 14. She also described the damages she sustained, RP p. 12 line 18 et. seq., and quantified her medical expenses. RP p. 14 line 3. The other live witness to the incident was Claudia Johnson. Ms. Johnson acknowledges that she was present but did not see the contact between the parties. RP p. 20 line 7. The Appellant also offered a witness to the incident by affidavit. Over the Respondent's objection the Court considered the affidavit of Henry Valder but due to its emotional content which was clearly inconsistent with the volume of evidence, the Court gave it little weight. RP p. 112 line 6.

Based upon the evidence submitted by the Appellant regarding intent and causation, the Court determined that she had not met her burden. RP 113. Complimenting this failure to sustain her burden of proof,

the Respondent submitted the testimony of four live witnesses (three direct and one rebuttal) and offered evidence which contradicted and discredited the testimony of the Appellant's evidence. RP 39-96. One such witness was Detective Michael Ricketts of the Spokane County Sheriff's Office who was assigned to investigate the allegations by the Appellant. RP 40. Detective Ricketts Report. As part of his investigation he reviewed transcripts of interviews of the Appellant by the news media, and a videotape of only post-incident activities. RP p. 41 line 22 et. seq., and personally viewed and measured the scene where the incident occurred. RP p. 42 line 12. Detective Ricketts interviewed a number of witnesses, and with the exception of the Respondent and her husband, all of the witnesses' names were provided by the Appellant, Tari Anderson. RP p. 46 line 1. Detective Ricketts Report.

Although the witnesses were promoted by the Appellant, their testimony provides fertile ground for what actually occurred that evening, and provides evidence which specifically contradicts the testimony of Appellant. RP 39-79. Detective Ricketts' review of the interview of the Plaintiff by Mike Fitzsimmons, a local radio broadcaster, is particularly telling. RP 50-51. In describing the incident to Mr. Fitzsimmons, the Appellant states that the contact by the Respondent was with the sign she was holding. RP p. 50 line 12. Comparing this testimony with that she

provided to Detective Ricketts he concludes that the Appellant's testimony was not consistent. RP 54 line 3, but did find that the statements by the Respondent were consistent. RP p. 54 line 15. Detective Ricketts Report. When Detective Ricketts interviewed the Appellant, she stated that the Respondent made contact with the sign, RP p. 49 line 3, but later in the same interview said the contact was to her stomach, RP p. 49 line 11, and later said the contact was with her fingers. RP p. 50 line 3. Detective Ricketts Report. Detective Ricketts also reviewed the transcript of an interview of the Appellant by a KXLY TV reporter. In that interview the Appellant related that she was pushed hard enough that her "hand flung back". RP p. 51 line 11. Subsequently when interviewed by Detective Ricketts the Appellant described the contact much more benignly when she stated, "it wasn't like I was really going to fall back". RP p. 49 line 16. When Detective Ricketts interviewed Kathleen Binford, one of the Appellant's witnesses who was present that day, she stated that she did not see Tari Anderson's hands go up in the air as a result of the contact. RP p. 58 line 7. Detective Ricketts Report.

There are two other areas of inquiry by Detective Ricketts in his investigation of the allegations by the Appellant. Those areas are, the width of the corridor in which the Respondent and her husband traveled to get to the other side of Lincoln Street, and the nature

of the contact between the Respondent and the Appellant? Detective Ricketts Report. With regard to the size of the corridor, the Respondent testified at trial that she and her husband were trying to move into the crosswalk to get to the east side of Lincoln Street but that the protestors located at that corner left a very narrow corridor, RP p. 85 line 9, that the Appellant was obstructing their travel, RP p. 84 line 14, and that as they traversed that corridor the Appellant made that space even narrower by moving the sign she was holding toward the Respondent. RP p. 85 line 19. Respondent's husband corroborates that testimony. RP p.92 lines 8-19. Appellant's witness, Kathleen Binford, describes the corridor width to be between 2 and 2 ½ feet. RP p. 57 line 6. Another one of the Appellant's witnesses, Jill Jolly, stated that Tari Anderson "was impeding traffic somewhat". RP p. 59 line 16. A third witness for the Appellant, Patsy Dunn, stated that she believed that Tari Anderson "was in the personal space of Jane Hession". RP p. 62 line 11. Detective Ricketts, in response to the Court's question whether the Appellant was standing in the way where Jane Hession was progressing, or was in her way, said "Tari Anderson was in the area where pedestrians travel..." RP p. 75 line 11. And on further inquiry by the Court as to whether Jane Hession went out of her way to encounter the sign or Tari Anderson, Detective Ricketts stated "I don't have anything corroborating that; that indicates that she did

that." RP p. 75 line 18. Detective Ricketts Report.

Appellant describes the nature of the contact with Respondent as a "push". RP p. 50 line 9. Respondent describes it as a "nudge" of the sign held by the Appellant using her forearm. RP p. 85 line 11. The Respondent's husband describes the contact as "incidental". RP p. 92 line 21. As previously documented herein, the Appellant's story of where and with what the contact was made was inconsistent. Infra at pp. 4-5. In contrast, the Appellant's witnesses are overall consistent in their testimony regarding the nature of the contact. Kathleen Binford described it as "...it was more like a nudge, not a push as though she was trying to push someone down". RP p. 58 line 14. Jill Jolly testified that she believed Jane Hession was provoked and that she didn't believe Jane Hession "meant to be harmful to the Appellant". RP p. 59 line 12, and that "Tari may be emotionally offended but was not harmed". RP p. 60 line 22. Patsy Dunn stated that "Jane Hession only used her arm to get Tari Anderson out of her way," RP p. 62 line 9, using her arm in a horizontal movement in order to have more room to proceed..." RP p. 62 line 14, and that "Jane Hession needed her space and probably felt threatened by Tari Anderson". RP p. 63 line 5. From all the evidence gathered in his investigation Detective Ricketts had this to say about the nature of the contact:

As contact you have from reviewing my reports, talking with witnesses, being at the scene, and that you have a demonstrator holding up a sign that could be offensive to the person if it's about the person in the travel portion where people are going to travel across the street.

And to me it would not offend a reasonable person that kind of touching when you are trying to go through a crowd or through people and you do this. To me that does not constitute an assault. I believe people have the right to be secure in their space. I didn't have reason to believe that Tari was not assaulting Jane but Jane was not assaulting Tari neither. I think that if Tari would have been outside the pedestrian area where they're traveling and given them plenty of room and what I did have is like 2 ½ feet from the light post where the Hessions crossed through, I had a statement indicating that. If she would have been farther and actually outside the traveling portion or the zone where pedestrians travel if Mrs. Hession would have walked over and pushed her like that when she had plenty of room that would have been something different. But I didn't have evidence to support that so based on everything I had, I did not believe that the touching, number one was unlawful and I don't believe it would have offended a reasonable person. RP p. 63 line 20 – RP P. 64 line 19. Detective Ricketts Report.

The Notice of Small Claim submitted by the Appellant is without specificity, but sounds in intentional conduct. RP 6. The Trial Court adapted that claim to countenance both intentional battery and negligence. RP 7 and RP 109-111. Logically, the focus of Detective Ricketts Investigation was on the intent element of 4th Degree Assault which was the subject of his responsibility and his investigation. RP 51-52. Detective Ricketts Report. This is a civil matter. The burden of proof is more stringent for criminal assault (beyond a reasonable doubt) than for civil battery (preponderance of the evidence). RP 7. Thus the value of the investigation lies in part with the determination by the investigating detective into the element of intent. RP 51-52. Detective Ricketts determined that the element of intent was lacking in his 4th degree assault investigation. RP 51-52. That conclusion was validated by virtually all of his superiors within the Sheriff's Office RP 52-53 and Brian O'Brien, RP 53 Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney, who commented, "I have never seen a misdemeanor assault allegation so thoroughly investigated." CP – Detective Rickett's Report. Because he was called to testify in this civil claim, Detective Ricketts utilized his investigation to relate those facts to

the civil claims. RP 55-56. Detective Ricketts' findings in the criminal investigation inform the Court's determination of the civil claim for battery. RP 52. Detective Ricketts Report.

The elements of the intentional tort of battery are set forth in the case of <u>Garratt v. Dailey</u>, 46 Wn. 2d 197, 279 P. 2d 1091, 1093 (1955) wherein the Court adopts the definition of the Restatement, as follows:

The rule that determines liability for battery is given in 1 Restatement, Torts, 29 sec. 13, as:

"An act which, directly or indirectly, is the legal cause of a harmful contact with another's person makes the actor liable to the other if

- "(a) the act is done with the intention of bringing about a harmful or offensive contact or an apprehension thereof to the other or a third person, and
- "(b) the contact is not consented to by the other or the other's consent thereto is procured by fraud or duress, and
- "(c) the contact is not otherwise privileged."

 See also <u>Collier v. Momah</u>, 2008 Wash App. Lexis 1529 (2008)

The Trial Judge does not spend a lot of time on the civil battery claim, concluding summarily, "The evidence does not support that." RP 113. If you look at the elements of intentional battery, an independent assessment leads to but one conclusion, the Appellant did not satisfy her burden of proving those elements. There was simply no evidence that the act was done "with the intention of bringing about a harmful or offensive contact." The overwhelming weight of the evidence was to the contrary.

Similarly, the Trial Court did not find sufficient evidence to support a claim for negligence.

"In an action for negligence a plaintiff must prove four basic elements: (1) the existence of a duty, (2) the breach of that duty, (3) resulting injury, and (4) proximate cause." Ranger Ins Co. v Pierce County, 164 wn. 2d 545, 552, 192P.3d 886 (2008); Degel v. Majestic Mobile Manor, Inc., 129 Wn. 2d 43, 914 P. 2d 728 (1996); Tincani v. Inland Empire Zoological Society, 124 Wn. 2d 121, 875 P. 2d 621 (1994). The definition is written in the conjunctive requiring all elements be satisfied. For these purposes the Respondent concedes the existence of a duty. But clearly the Trial Court found neither a breach of the duty or proximate cause.

The Appellant did not make a case for nor prove the elements of a claim of negligence, but if you concede the existence of a duty, and

assume that the duty requires all person to exercise reasonable care as they go about their daily lives and interact with others, then the Appellant did not prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the Respondent breached that duty. The Trial Court in its oral opinion found that the acts of the Respondent were consistent with what a reasonable person would have done under the same or similar circumstances. RP 112-114. The Court also found that the Respondent had the right to proceed in the crosswalk unimpeded and if crowded had the right to move the object to the side to allow her to pass. RP 109-113. The Court concludes that the contact was "incidental" due to the existing congestion. RP 112.

The Court goes on to declare that the Appellant failed to show that the Respondent's conduct was the proximate cause of her damages. RP 113. Judge Robinson states in his findings "...but I don't think it was the force exerted by Jane Hession that caused you to lose your balance." RP p. 114 line 12. This finding is reasonable and supported by the consistent testimony of the Respondent and by the lack of consistent testimony offered by the Appellant and her witnesses. Not one of the people identified by the Appellant's having knowledge of the incident could support the description of the incident as the Appellant described it. Even the Appellants own testimony and the description of the events of the day

were not internally consistent and was most certainly a factor in the Court's determination regarding proximate cause and breach of duty.

B. The Decision to Permit the Appearance of an Attorney in an Action Filed in the Small Claims Department of the District Court Lies Within the Sound Discretion of the Trial Judge.

RCW 12.40.080 provides in part:

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